
 

 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
DECEMBER 17, 2015 

 

Present: 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer      Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary     General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner       

Thomas Good, Commissioner        

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

        

Absent:     

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Vice Chair Ryan called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:05 A.M., with Commissioner 

Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Good, Commissioner Goggin and 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.   

  

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Mersinger moved for approval of the minutes of the November 19th, 2015, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Minnaugh and 

carried unanimously by those present. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 
  Chair Hodges joined the meeting at approximately 8:15 A.M 

 

A. SBDD RESOLUTION NO. 2015-11 – POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR EROSION 

PROTECTION AND LAKE BANK STABILIZATION AND REHABILITATION 

 
District Director Hart presented SBDD Resolution No. 2015-11 for the adoption of proposed 

SBDD Policies and Guidelines for Erosion Protection and Lake Bank Stabilization and 

Rehabilitation.  The proposed Policies and Guidelines are consistent with SBDD’s current and past 

practices for dealing with erosion protection and lake bank stabilization/rehabilitation issues. 

 

District Director Hart stated that this Agenda item was in response to the Board’s interest in having 

a written policy prepared and approved as it relates to the District’s responsibilities for erosion 

protection, primarily along private properties.  He said that most properties, at one time or another, 



 

 

 -2- 

 

will experience some form of erosion; and that there are several causes or events that can 

exacerbate and accelerate erosion.  Attorney Bell and District Director Hart have put together a 

draft set of policies and guidelines and the approval of Resolution No. 2015-11 will establish 

SBDD Policies and Guidelines for Erosion Protection and Lake Bank Stabilization and 

Rehabilitation.    

 

District Director Hart reviewed the proposed policies with the Board.  He said that the District has 

received the first draft of the map index showing the ownership of all waterbodies; it is not finalized 

yet, but it is a very good start; and when completed, it will provide a detailed and comprehensive 

index of ownership of all water bodies.  He said that ownership does vary; SBDD owns numerous 

water bodies, and there is ownership listed by FDOT, South Florida Water Management District, 

Broward County and several municipalities; and there are also numerous water bodies that are 

privately owned by the adjacent property owners.   

 

District Director Hart further explained the policies, and noted that they make reference to the 

Charter and the Board’s power, as it relates to funding for construction, operation and maintenance.  

He indicated that the types of improvements the District may fund for erosion protection and lake 

bank stabilization are as follows: 

 

 Improvements along and adjacent to SBDD owned canals and waterways where the District 

has title and easement rights and where the District Board has determined that the 

improvements will provide a benefit to the lands within the District and overall drainage basin 

for drainage and water management purposes. 

 

 Improvement along and adjacent to privately owned waterways where the District has 

easement rights and where the District Board has determined that the improvement will provide 

a benefit to the lands within the District and overall drainage basin for drainage and water 

management purposes. 

 

 Improvements along private properties where the District has easement rights and the 

improvement are part of a Special Assessment. 

 

 Improvements along any property within the District where the District has title or easement 

rights and where the Board has determined that the improvements are necessary for emergency 

purposes or to protect the health and safety of the District’s residence and properties. 

 

Finally, District Director Hart indicated the type of assistance the District is able to provide for 

private property owners, as it relates to erosion protection. 

 

Discussion ensued. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that she felt the Policy seemed very comprehensive.  She 

asked District Director Hart if the word “lake” should be included where the word “canal” is 

written.  District Director Hart replied yes, it should say lake/canal.  It was suggested that this term 

be defined at the beginning of the document.  District Director Hart replied that he would add it 

under definitions.  Commissioner Minnaugh said she had a question regarding funding - can any 

of the emergency funds be used for canal/lake restoration if there is a huge weather event that 

would damage the easement, as opposed to the District borrowing money and assessing residents.  

She said that the money sitting there is not specifically earmarked, and this policy does not 



 

 

 -3- 

 

specifically mention the emergency fund. Vice Chair Ryan responded that if the District has to use 

emergency funds, they will use those funds before they will borrow money; that was the whole 

philosophy behind the emergency fund.  Chair Hodges commented that this would get the District 

started before going anywhere else.  Commissioner Good commented that he is generally in 

agreement with that comment, but he wanted to clarify that a Special Assessment is only going to 

be applied when there is a special benefit.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger had a question regarding the recommendation of Contractors.  She asked 

if the District can recommend Contractors and Engineers.  District Director Hart clarified that the 

District cannot recommend Contractors or Engineers.  He said that the District is commonly asked 

if they know of any contractors, etc., and the District gives them a list of Contractors and Engineers 

that have done work within SBDD; but the District does not recommend any particular 

Contractor/Engineer. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger also had a question regarding the Special Assessment.  She said that as 

she recalls it, one of the reasons the emergency funding was created, and the money can only be 

allocated with a super majority, is if there is vast damage.  She said one of the reasons the District 

did the Special Assessment (after Wilma) was, since everyone is part of the District, everyone 

should bear the burden; and it is easier for everyone to pay $5; and that was one of the reasons it 

was raised, so that the District would not have to do pin-pointed Special Assessments.  She 

commented that perhaps this is a discussion that the Board may want to bring up again.  District 

Director Hart suggested that the District add a paragraph or statement that talks about the Board’s 

ability to fund any improvement, including erosion, because the emergency fund is not limited to 

erosion improvements, but to whatever the Board determines constitutes an emergency; and 

funding would be coming from the emergency fund.  He said that the District (staff) did not want 

to include the emergency fund, per say, in this policy, because that fund has its own provisions and 

rules on how it is approved, and the steps that are required for that.  He said that the Board will 

make the determination on what would constitute an emergency.  Although it is true that funding 

could come from the emergency fund to do erosion protection, they did not want to try and list 

every possible circumstance.   

 

He asked the Board for direction on whether it should be added as a general statement.  The Board 

agreed that they didn’t think it was necessary.  Commissioner Minnaugh said that when that fund 

was set up, it was due to an unusual event, like Wilma.   

 

Commissioner Good commented that he thinks that the last bullet point is rather vague in the sense 

that it may create a bit of a problem, and may unravel what the District is wanting to do.  He asked 

what would prevent a resident from coming and making a pitch that their particular property is 

unsafe to the public; and then demand that the District fix the property in accordance with the 

District’s policy.  He said that the last bullet point is too broad.  District Director Hart agreed with 

Commissioner Good.  Commissioner Mersinger said that there is specific language in the District’s 

Charter, where the District has to protect health and safety.  Commissioner Good responded that 

is in a form of drainage and water management, and not in a form of property restoration; and this 

is in a form of property restoration. 

 

Vice Chair Ryan commented that if a property owner were to state such a thing, the property owner 

would need to come up with the burden of proof, and to come up with an engineering opinion to 

show that it does affect the safety and welfare of the residents.  Commissioner Goggin commented 

that although he agrees on both levels, that it now comes down to the resident standing before the 

Board to discuss something that was already solved.  District Director Hart commented that the 



 

 

 -4- 

 

District would rather avoid that, and that one of the purposes of the policy is for staff to be able to 

refer to the policy.  He said that a period after the word “emergency” might suffice.  Commissioner 

Good agreed with District Director Hart that a period should suffice. 

 

Commissioner Good said that the other word he has concerns with, is the paragraph where the 

word “larger community” needs to be better defined.  He suggested to reword it to say “to a larger 

community, as determined by the Board”.   

 

Vice Chair Ryan asked if the Resolution can be approved subject to the recommendations given to 

the District Director by the Board.  Commissioner Goggin asked in regard to Commissioner 

Mersinger’s comment on Contractor/Engineers, would it be advisable to add “using or utilizing 

approved vendors by the District” in the wording.  District Director Hart replied that page 4 of the 

policy is just intended to give examples of what is asked of the District.  He elaborated and said 

that in the back end of the policy it references a list of vendors, with no recommendations.  It is 

for the property owner to do their own research and educate themselves. 

 

Commissioner Goggin commented that in the first section it discusses what the District’s primary 

role is.  He said he sees that it talks about tree trimming, and other vegetation, etc., but it does not 

talk about trash.  He said that there is no mention anywhere on trash, and he was wondering if it is 

left out on purpose.  He said that trash is a big concern in certain areas, and in general, and he 

wanted to know if there is any point where they should be referencing that, or not, by leaving it 

out.  District Director Hart said he can add the word . . . “other facilities”.  He said trash removal 

is not listed; and that the District does not do trash removal in private lakes or District lakes for 

that matter.  District Director Hart said that it’s a good point, but trash removal is done on a very 

limited basis. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh reiterated the question and asked if there should be a motion to approve 

the resolution.  Commissioner Mersinger asked Commissioner Good with the changes that are 

made, does he prefer to wait.  Commissioner Good replied that he would rather wait until it is in 

its final form.  The decision was unanimous that this item be deferred and brought back before the 

Board in its final form to be approved as the first Resolution of 2016. 

 

B. OTHER 

 

 Presentation of Draft Financial Report– District Director Hart said that the Draft 

Financial Report will be presented at the January 2016 Board meeting. 

 

 Evaluation Form for District Director Hart – District Director Hart distributed the 

evaluation form for 2015 for the District Director, and asked the Board to return them 

back by January 18, 2016 so that he may distribute them to the Chair for summation and 

further action through the Board. 

 
05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT: 

 
 None. 
  
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 



 

 

 -5- 

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall and it was carried unanimously.   
  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

 

  Commissioner Goggin commented that in light of all the rainfall South Florida has had this past 

month, not seeing or hearing of any big problems, that the District has done a great job; and that an 

outside source came into his store regarding issues on the golf course that the City of Pembroke 

Pines was having.  This gentleman was so happy that the District Director was able to handle it.  

He thought this was an interesting observation; that of all the problems that the District has on 

flooding, that the only problem was flooding at a golf course. 

 

  District Director Hart indicated that he received a phone call from the City of Pembroke Pines 

regarding the Pembroke Lakes Golf Course, and that Joe Certain and he met with city staff to 

address their concerns.   

 

  Commissioner Good had concerns on Senate Bill #416 – he recommended that the executive team 

evaluate that Senate Bill and determine if there is an impact to the District, and if so, maybe the 

District can take action.  He said this bill is essentially talking about easements and the relocation 

of existing utilities.  Attorney Bell said he will look into it.  Chair Hodges asked what would 

supersede that language.  Attorney Bell said that he thinks that if you have a property interest, 

which is basically what the District has, and it is almost like a restricted covenant, it would run with 

the land, and it tells the property owner that if they want to do any work in our easement then they 

have to get our approval, period.  He said he will look into it. 

 

  Commissioner Mersinger said that it looks as if it’s going straight to the Senate and it has a 

companion bill.  District Director Hart said he would make FASD aware of it as well, because it 

wouldn’t be limited to easements under plat.   

 

  Commissioner Minnaugh had a question regarding Monarch Lakes on Attorney Bell’s legal bills.  

She wanted to know what that was about.  Attorney Bell explained that the District is not being 

sued.  He said the District is just involved in a lawsuit because the District approved permits for 

some of the work that was done.  This has been going on for about 6 or 7 years and that they’ve 

already taken some depositions. 

   

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. Next Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, January 28th, 2016 at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 9:05 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

/rim 










































































































































































